
 

CITY OF COLUMBIA  
CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION MINUTES 
APRIL 23, 2008 – 12:00 P.M. – 4:00 P.M. 
CITY HALL – 1737 MAIN STREET 
CITY COUNCIL CONFERENCE ROOM – 2ND FLOOR 
 
 
The Columbia City Council met for a Work Session on Wednesday, April 23, 2008 in the City 
Hall Council Conference Room located at 1737 Main Street, Columbia, South Carolina. Mayor 
Robert D. Coble called the meeting to order at 12:06 p.m. The following members of Council 
were present: The Honorable E. W. Cromartie, II, The Honorable Anne M. Sinclair, The 
Honorable Tameika Isaac Devine, The Honorable Daniel J. Rickenmann and The Honorable 
Kirkman Finlay III. The Honorable Sam Davis joined the meeting at 12:57 p.m. Also present 
were Mr. Charles P. Austin, Sr., City Manager and Ms. Erika D. Salley, City Clerk. 
 
CITY COUNCIL DISCUSSION / ACTION 
 
1. Update on Pavement Management Survey – Ms. Melissa Gentry, P.E., Director of 

Public Works 
 
Ms. Melissa Gentry, P.E., Director of Public Works presented the Sidewalk Priority List to the 
members of Council. The following criteria are used to evaluate all requests: average daily 
traffic, current pedestrian use, school proximity, public park recreation/greenway, development 
health center proximity, existing sidewalk proximity/connectivity, and mass transit stop 
proximity. There are currently eighty three (83) pending requests for sidewalks totaling 
$6,848,287 for material costs and $10,105,120 if the work is contracted to an outside firm. She 
further reported that our roads are in need of repair. 
 
Councilor Finlay asked if these projects would require additional employees if funding were 
available. 
 
Ms. Melissa Gentry, P.E., Director of Public Works explained that staff usually maintains 
existing sidewalks but they do not construct them. This would be a three (3) to four (4) year 
project list if done by city forces. She noted that 70% of our roadways are state owned. She 
reported that Gas Tax Funds are currently frozen and no grants are being awarded for roadway 
improvements. 
 
Councilor Devine suggested that the Council send letters to SCDOT with copies going to 
elected officials so that they are aware. She noted that SCDOT has a responsibility to ensure 
that the roadways are safe to include sidewalks. She inquired about the city’s intersections 
being handicap accessible.  
 
Upon motion by Mr. Finlay, seconded by Ms. Sinclair, Council voted unanimously to allocate up 
to $250,000 per year for sidewalk improvements, subject to funding availability; to deal with the 
city owned roads; to establish a legislative strategy with the state and neighborhoods to 
address state owned roads; to incorporate all projects into the Richland County Transportation 
Study for funding; to direct staff to continue to pursue grants; and to direct staff to provide 
another report back to Council. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      WSM 04/23/2008Page 1 



 

      WSM 04/23/2008Page 2 

2. Budget Preparation Goals / Citywide Strategic Plan – Mr. Charles P. Austin, Sr., City 
Manager 

 
GOAL 1 - To enhance the quality of life of the City of Columbia for all citizens, customers 
and visitors. 
 
Priorities - Public safety, security cameras, Richland School District One and Together We Can 
 
Mr. Charles P. Austin, Sr., City Manager explained that the $2.5 million Retention Plan is 
included in this budget at $75,000 per year. He reported that the pay increases for Public 
Safety will be phased in and the fourteen (14) Police Officer positions and three (3) positions 
for Battalion Chief have been added to the budget. He will continue to look at the 285 
vacancies to determine if they can be reclassified. 
 
Councilor Devine suggested that Mr. Austin look at vacancies that can be phased out over a 
period of time. She asked how he planned to implement the increases. She noted that the 
retention issue is not just about pay and that other issues should be addressed when the new 
Police Chief arrives. 
 
Mr. Charles P. Austin, Sr., City Manager stated that the Public Safety pay increases would start 
at the Officer and Firefighter levels.  
 
Councilor Finlay noted that the Police Department is getting a $300,000 increase when you 
exclude merit increases and cost of living adjustments. He asked that staff look at this closely, 
because there may not be funding for equipment needs and other matters. 
 
Mayor Coble suggested that we continue to collaborate on DNA testing. He said that being 
able to take vehicles home is a benefits issue, noting that the city pays its officers more than 
the Sheriffs Department. 
 
Councilor Sinclair asked about the number of Officers that take home cars. It would be helpful 
to know which vacancies are needed, because there is potential money that we can reallocate. 
 
Councilor Cromartie added that Officers residing within the city limits should be allowed to take 
home their vehicles as an extra benefit. 
 
Mr. Charles P. Austin, Sr., City Manager stated that the Police Chief and the Director of 
Community Development would work together to market the home loan programs. 
 
Councilor Finlay stated that the Police Department appears to be top heavy in Administration.  
 
Councilor Rickenmann reminded his peers of their commitment to get sworn Officers back onto 
the streets. 
 
Mr. Charles P. Austin, Sr., City Manager said that it is not uncommon to have one (1) Major 
managing three (3) bureaus in a city of this size. He noted that each region is commanded by a 
Captain. 
 
Councilor Finlay urged the City Manager to re-evaluate his spreadsheet and how it will impact 
the budget. He stated that personnel vacancies are used to absorb higher diesel costs. 
 
Councilor Davis said that it is important for the new Police Chief to understand what the 
Council expects, noting that we are willing to work with him on this budget. We are making an 
honest attempt to support their needs and we must have expectations. 
 



 

      WSM 04/23/2008Page 3 

 
Mr. Charles P. Austin, Sr., City Manager replied that the Police Department is not top heavy, 
but we need to analyze which works best a Captain or a Lieutenant.  He requested a report 
that would look at vacant positions so he will know where they are, how much money was 
budgeted and whether the need still exists. He hopes to have that information within two (2) 
weeks. 
 
Councilor Rickenmann also wants to know if the money from the vacancies is being absorbed 
in the budget. 
 
Councilor Davis directed the City Manager to immediately develop a strategy to reallocate 
funding that has not been absorbed. 
 
Mayor Coble urged staff to keep in mind that it’s the entire city and all funds and to consider 
other funding sources such as Richland County, Community Development Block Grant Funds, 
etc. 
 
Mr. Charles P. Austin, Sr., City Manager asked if the Council wanted him to look at all 
vacancies and where they are. 
 
Councilor Finlay requested more detail in an effort to make sure positions are not slotted to 
secure extra funding. He asked what was spent on fuel in fiscal year 2006/2007, the average 
prices, the number of gallons and the impact fuel costs will have on the fiscal year 2008/2009 
budget. 
 
Councilor Rickenmann requested a detailed report of all line items and a memo on any 
changes made to the budget so the Council can understand exactly what they are doing. 
 
Councilor Sinclair began the discussion on security cameras, noting that there will be a long 
time before we have a meaningful security system at this pace. We need to find other funding 
to go with this. 
 
Mayor Coble insisted that any unallocated funds go towards security cameras. This should be 
a top priority. 
 
Mr. Charles P. Austin, Sr., City Manager has considered the possibility of installing cameras on 
top of parking garages. 
 
Councilor Devine said that cameras on top of parking garages won’t reach the neighborhoods. 
She suggested that staff contact the Town of Rock Hill for ballpark figures, because they have 
Wi-Fi, they remotely read meters and Police Officers can view cameras inside their cars. 
 
Mr. Steve Gantt, Senior Assistant City Manager stated that Rock Hill is not far enough along 
with the electronic meter reading to offer us an estimate. They are in the installation process 
and are concerned about having to put batteries in all water meters in order to read them. He 
noted that they have experienced a significant amount of failures. 
 
Mr. Charles P. Austin, Sr., City Manager said that we were in the forefront when we installed 
the Mobile Data Terminals (MDT) to allow Officers to monitor cameras from the car. 
 
Councilor Finlay suggested that staff rank the sites as recommended by the consultant. He is 
supportive of the security cameras but urged his peers to stay within the confines of the 
budget. 
 
Councilor Cromartie suggested that the City Manager be directed to meet with the consultants 
that were hired on a state level to find money. He further suggested that they schedule a 



 

      WSM 04/23/2008Page 4 

breakfast meeting to talk with these consultants. 
 
 
Mr. Charles P. Austin, Sr., City Manager explained that the city has a $45,000 commitment to 
Richland School District One / Together We Can through 2011. 
 
Councilor Rickenmann expressed concerns about the University of South Carolina charging 
the schools for graduation ceremonies held at the Koger Center. He said that the city should 
not do anything for them until they take this fee away, which is paid by the city. 
 
Mayor Coble explained that they are doing the same study as done in Mobile, Alabama. The 
cost will be split 3-ways and $85,000 will be set aside for other initiatives with Together We 
Can. 
 
Councilor Devine said that we needed to budget something reasonable while realizing that the 
big picture is enhancing the quality of life. 
 
Councilor Finlay noted that the recommended level of funding amounts to one third (1/3) of a 
mil tax increase and that the school district is already hitting our taxpayers. 
 
Councilor Rickenmann suggested that staff develop a budget for Together We Can. 
 
Councilor Devine asked about funding for the implementation of the recommendations relating 
to the Gang Assessment, because that will be a big-ticket item in the $200,000 range. 
 
Mayor Coble added the Criminal Domestic Violence Taskforce to ensure their needs are met, 
because this is a top crime problem. He asked how we could require safety and security plans 
for larger apartment complexes such as Gable Oaks. 
 
Councilor Devine stated that some expenses may come out of the committee’s 
recommendation, but no additional funding is needed. 
 
Councilor Davis said that the Gang Assessment shows there are other entities out there that 
aren’t bringing any resources to the table. We can’t fund it all ourselves and then we fall short. 
 
Councilor Rickenmann said that he doesn’t want to do all of this stuff and don’t have an impact. 
He would rather do a lot on the gang assessment than a little on the cameras. 
 
Councilor Finlay noted that Richland County School District One has a huge budget. He stated 
that the City has 30-40 small projects that will cost us. He said that a reserve is needed and 
questioned the effectiveness of giving dollops of funding all around. 
 
Mayor Coble stated that this would be a funding source to pay for administrative costs. 
 
Mr. Charles P. Austin, Sr., City Manager noted that the city is also funding Koban.  
 
Councilor Devine suggested that the Commission on Children and Youth or the Columbia 
Police Department coordinate the Together We Can effort.  
 
Councilor Finlay reminded his peers that there is a top line revenue number and if new items 
are added to the budget then the City Manager should be told where to make cuts. 
 
Councilor Sinclair stated that homeless and emergency services should be a Public Safety 
priority.  
 
Councilor Davis said that code enforcement should be listed under goal one. He doesn’t see 



 

      WSM 04/23/2008Page 5 

an increase in positions and believes that understaffing hinders the city from addressing the 
code enforcement needs. 
 
Mr. Charles P. Austin, Sr., City Manager stated that code enforcement would be their focus as 
the budget is evaluated. 
 
Councilor Rickenmann suggested that the Community Safety Officers be cross-trained to help 
with code enforcement issues. 
  
Mr. Charles P. Austin, Sr., City Manager noted that cross-training has taken place. 
 
Mr. Harold Reaves, Director of Homeland Security, explained that he is working with 
Development Services now, but Community Safety Officers don’t have the authority to do 
enforcement; therefore, they are trained to identify problems and then report them to 
Development Services. An Ordinance is needed to give the Community Safety Officers code 
enforcement authority. 
 
Councilor Davis suggested that the work hours be adjusted, because not all codes are violated 
during the standard business hours.  He further suggested that they look at violations that 
occur over the weekend. 
 
GOAL 2 – To enhance and protect our natural and built infrastructure. 
 
Priorities – TIF Settlement, Black & Veatch, General Capital Improvements Program, Park 
Renovations and the Energy Audit 
 
Mayor Coble suggested that there be a person in charge of implementing the results of the 
audit. 
  
Councilor Sinclair further suggested that the city hire a Climate Protection czar and she 
reminded the Council that the city has not completed their portion of the Greenway. 
 
Mr. Steve Gantt, Senior Assistant City Manager stated that funds remaining from other projects 
can be funneled to the River Alliance for completion of the Greenway. 
 
Councilor Sinclair reminded her peers about the city’s obligation to the Skate Park. She 
believes that the consultant has done a great job with fitting the Skate Park into the topography 
and addressing drainage issues. 
 
Mr. S. Allison Baker, Assistant City Manager for Public Services explained that the original 
Skate Park was 20,000 square feet, but the new one will be approximately 16,000 square feet. 
 
Mr. Steve Gantt, Senior Assistant City Manager stated that the Canalfront bids will go out in a 
few weeks. 
 
Councilor Finlay asked for the amount of Hospitality Tax Funds needed by the Police 
Department. He requested information on how Myrtle Beach handles this. 
 
Councilor Sinclair stated that funding the Police Department is not a good way to spend 
Hospitality Tax Funds, because we have a commitment to those that generate the tax. She 
noted that this is an operational issue. 
 
Mayor Coble proposed that the city could get more bang for its buck by spending a little more 
from the Hospitality Tax Fund on the Clean and Safety Teams within tourist areas. This would 
also decrease the need for more officers. 
 



 

      WSM 04/23/2008Page 6 

Mr. Charles P. Austin, Sr., City Manager explained that the School Resource Officers will be 
reassigned to patrol functions once school is out. 
 
Councilor Rickenmann noted that there are a lot of events that require police services, but they 
don’t pay for those services. He asked about the small groups that rent park facilities. 
 
Councilor Cromartie announced that the Vista wants a Clean and Safety Team. He noted that 
they generate a lot of Hospitality Tax Funds within the Vista. 
 
Mayor Coble suggested that the City Center Partnership, the Five Points Association and the 
Vista Guild meet to discuss this matter. 
 
GOAL 3 – To enhance Columbia’s future role as the flagship municipality in South 
Carolina through the use of best practices for local government operations. 
 
Priorities – Historic preservation and municipal governance 
 
Councilor Sinclair asked if the two (2) new Planners had been hired. 
 
Mr. Steve Gantt, Senior Assistant City Manager stated that they are in the interviewing process 
for the Planner positions. 
 
Councilor Cromartie asked for the number of vacancies in the Finance Department, the dollar 
amount equivalent to such vacancies and the amount paid to the Municipal Association of 
South Carolina (MASC) to date. 
 
Councilor Sinclair asked how staff decided that the MASC was the best entity to conduct the 
departmental assessments.  
 
Mr. Charles P. Austin, Sr., City Manager explained that there are other entities available to 
conduct assessments. The MASC will not conduct the Information Technology assessment and 
he is unsure if they will do the Human Resources assessment, but the MASC is the better 
group. He added that they went directly to MASC, because of the city’s membership. 
 
Mayor Coble noted that several different CPA firms are doing the restructuring of the Finance 
Department. He asked if the Interim Finance Director would be leading the effort. 
 
Councilor Rickenmann suggested that the city draft a Request for Proposals for the Human 
Resources assessment. He stated that a consultant is needed to privatize the IT Department. 
 
Councilor Sinclair concurred, noting that we make a mistake by not putting out RFP’s. 
 
Councilor Devine stated that Council gave Mr. Austin a goal and if the Council decides to issue 
a Request for Proposals for the assessments, they should still give the City Manager credit for 
doing his part. 
 
Councilor Finlay stated that the city needed to move past studies and start implementing 
things. He has been here for 22 months and has never seen an updated income statement.  
 
Mr. Charles P. Austin, Sr., City Manager reiterated that the Finance Department is not doing 
another assessment. 
 
Mayor Coble explained that the MASC is doing the preparation work for the 2006/2007 audit, 
staff training, accounting services to include restructuring and best practices. He noted that the 
hours will decrease once the audit is closed. 



 

      WSM 04/23/2008Page 7 

 
Councilor Cromartie requested the total amount of billable hours for this year and the actual 
start date of the contract with the Municipal Association. 
 
Mayor Coble replied that the contract started in February 2008. 
 
Councilor Devine stated that there is a consensus to draft a Request for Proposals for a 
Human Resources assessment. She would like to see a Request for Qualifications for an 
Information Technology assessment along with any concerns. She added that Council should 
make the final decision on all policy issues. 
 
Councilor Davis requested that the Information Technology Director report to Council often. 
 
Councilor Finlay requested the numbers for each income bracket in terms of the Cost of Living 
Adjustment (COLA) since the first proposal is for a 5% COLA for employees making less than 
$50,000.  
 
Mayor Coble stated that the Conventions and Visitors Bureau (CVB) has requested $120,000 
and he recommended that they allocate $60,000 at this point and consider the balance once 
we get our third quarter collections from the state. 
  
 Mr. Finlay left the meeting at 3:54 p.m. 

 
Councilor Devine concurred with the Mayor’s recommendation, noting that the CVB was about 
to lay people off from work. 
  
Councilor Rickenmann is concerned about departments whose budgets have not increased 
such as Municipal Court’s personnel services line item, which hasn’t increased in a while. 
 
Councilor Sinclair has the same concerns about Public Works. 
  
Councilor Cromartie doesn’t agree with a 3% COLA. 
 
Councilor Davis would support giving a 5% COLA to employees that earn $35,000 and below. 
 
Councilor Devine asked for the budgeted amount for the Compensation and Classification 
Study. 
 
Mr. Charles P. Austin, Sr., City Manager noted that the Request for Proposals for a 
Compensation and Classification study has not been completed, but $200,000 has been 
allocated and built into the line item for the Cost of Living Adjustments. 
 
Councilor Rickenmann requested that staff compare the MGT study to where we are today and 
determine where we are lacking. He requested a listing of salaries as reported by WLTX. 
 
GOAL 4 – To grow the City’s tax base by facilitating opportunities for citizens and future 
generations to reach their full economic, social and cultural potential 
 
Priorities – Business License Codes, business incentives and marketing, animal services and 
solid waste 
 
Councilor Sinclair said that you would be surprised by the difference it makes in business 
license fees once you change the codes.  
 
Councilor Cromartie stated that this will be a huge part of whether or not people would move to 



 

      WSM 04/23/2008Page 8 

the City of Columbia. 
 
Councilor Devine asked about replacing the Business License software. 
 
 
Mr. Charles P. Austin, Sr., City Manager explained that this is being done in order to comply 
with the NCIS requirement.  
 
Ms. Missy Caughman, Interim Finance Director explained that funding is identified in Business 
Licenses budget for public relations efforts to get the word out and to focus on educating the 
public. 
 
Ms. Dana Turner, Assistant City Manager for Commerce and Development requested 
$1,000,000; $500,000 for marketing and $500,000 for incentives. 
 
Councilor Davis suggested that they utilize $600,000 for incentives and $400,000 for 
marketing. 
 
Councilor Devine suggested that the Home Loan Programs go under goal four, since we can’t 
always count on surplus funding. 
 
Councilor Sinclair said that she thought we had a contract with Richland County for Animal 
Services. 
 
Councilor Cromartie directed the City Manager to come back with a recommendation on how 
the City is going to pay Richland County the maintenance fee per day for inmates booked on 
city charges. How much should be budgeted? He suggested that they discuss this matter in 
Executive Session. 
 
Mr. S. Allison Baker, Assistant City Manager for Public Services stated that Richland County 
pays the City $14.00 per day for holding animals from Richland County.  
 
Councilor Rickenmann asked for the estimated revenue generated from Richland County. 
 
Councilor Sinclair stated that her business has a contract with the City of Columbia Solid 
Waste Division and asked if the city had considered increasing that cost. She suggested 
placing a gizmo on roll carts to determine the weight of trash being disposed and then charging 
by the weight. 
  
Councilor Cromartie noted that his business has the same contractual service and wanted to 
know the current number of businesses utilizing the same service. 
  
Mr. Charles P. Austin, Sr., City Manager stated that staff would put some numbers together. 
 
 Councilor Cromartie left the meeting at 4:33 p.m. 

 
3. Budget Preparation Goals / Climate Protection Action Committee 
 This item was not discussed. 
 
4. Fiscal Year 2008/2009 Proposed General Fund Budget 
 This item was not discussed. 
 
5. City Council Priorities 
 This item was not discussed. 
 
6. Closing Remarks 



 

      WSM 04/23/2008Page 9 

 
Mr. Charles P. Austin, Sr., City Manager presented the schedule for upcoming Budget Work 
Sessions.  The Council will meet on Wednesday, April 30, 2008 from 9:00 a.m. until 4:00 p.m. 
to discuss the remaining General Fund, Energy Audit Update, Climate Protection Action 
Committee initiatives, business license rate comparisons, park renovations, solid waste 
commercial collections and GASB45. 
Respectfully submitted by: 
 
 
 
Erika D. Salley 
City Clerk 


	CITY OF COLUMBIA 
	CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION MINUTES
	APRIL 23, 2008 – 12:00 P.M. – 4:00 P.M.
	CITY HALL – 1737 MAIN STREET
	CITY COUNCIL CONFERENCE ROOM – 2ND FLOOR
	The Columbia City Council met for a Work Session on Wednesday, April 23, 2008 in the City Hall Council Conference Room located at 1737 Main Street, Columbia, South Carolina. Mayor Robert D. Coble called the meeting to order at 12:06 p.m. The following members of Council were present: The Honorable E. W. Cromartie, II, The Honorable Anne M. Sinclair, The Honorable Tameika Isaac Devine, The Honorable Daniel J. Rickenmann and The Honorable Kirkman Finlay III. The Honorable Sam Davis joined the meeting at 12:57 p.m. Also present were Mr. Charles P. Austin, Sr., City Manager and Ms. Erika D. Salley, City Clerk.
	CITY COUNCIL DISCUSSION / ACTION
	1. Update on Pavement Management Survey – Ms. Melissa Gentry, P.E., Director of Public Works
	Ms. Melissa Gentry, P.E., Director of Public Works presented the Sidewalk Priority List to the members of Council. The following criteria are used to evaluate all requests: average daily traffic, current pedestrian use, school proximity, public park recreation/greenway, development health center proximity, existing sidewalk proximity/connectivity, and mass transit stop proximity. There are currently eighty three (83) pending requests for sidewalks totaling $6,848,287 for material costs and $10,105,120 if the work is contracted to an outside firm. She further reported that our roads are in need of repair.
	Councilor Finlay asked if these projects would require additional employees if funding were available.
	Ms. Melissa Gentry, P.E., Director of Public Works explained that staff usually maintains existing sidewalks but they do not construct them. This would be a three (3) to four (4) year project list if done by city forces. She noted that 70% of our roadways are state owned. She reported that Gas Tax Funds are currently frozen and no grants are being awarded for roadway improvements.
	Councilor Devine suggested that the Council send letters to SCDOT with copies going to elected officials so that they are aware. She noted that SCDOT has a responsibility to ensure that the roadways are safe to include sidewalks. She inquired about the city’s intersections being handicap accessible. 
	Upon motion by Mr. Finlay, seconded by Ms. Sinclair, Council voted unanimously to allocate up to $250,000 per year for sidewalk improvements, subject to funding availability; to deal with the city owned roads; to establish a legislative strategy with the state and neighborhoods to address state owned roads; to incorporate all projects into the Richland County Transportation Study for funding; to direct staff to continue to pursue grants; and to direct staff to provide another report back to Council.
	2. Budget Preparation Goals / Citywide Strategic Plan – Mr. Charles P. Austin, Sr., City Manager
	GOAL 1 - To enhance the quality of life of the City of Columbia for all citizens, customers and visitors.
	Priorities - Public safety, security cameras, Richland School District One and Together We Can
	Mr. Charles P. Austin, Sr., City Manager explained that the $2.5 million Retention Plan is included in this budget at $75,000 per year. He reported that the pay increases for Public Safety will be phased in and the fourteen (14) Police Officer positions and three (3) positions for Battalion Chief have been added to the budget. He will continue to look at the 285 vacancies to determine if they can be reclassified.
	Councilor Devine suggested that Mr. Austin look at vacancies that can be phased out over a period of time. She asked how he planned to implement the increases. She noted that the retention issue is not just about pay and that other issues should be addressed when the new Police Chief arrives.
	Mr. Charles P. Austin, Sr., City Manager stated that the Public Safety pay increases would start at the Officer and Firefighter levels. 
	Councilor Finlay noted that the Police Department is getting a $300,000 increase when you exclude merit increases and cost of living adjustments. He asked that staff look at this closely, because there may not be funding for equipment needs and other matters.
	Mayor Coble suggested that we continue to collaborate on DNA testing. He said that being able to take vehicles home is a benefits issue, noting that the city pays its officers more than the Sheriffs Department.
	Councilor Sinclair asked about the number of Officers that take home cars. It would be helpful to know which vacancies are needed, because there is potential money that we can reallocate.
	Councilor Cromartie added that Officers residing within the city limits should be allowed to take home their vehicles as an extra benefit.
	Mr. Charles P. Austin, Sr., City Manager stated that the Police Chief and the Director of Community Development would work together to market the home loan programs.
	Councilor Finlay stated that the Police Department appears to be top heavy in Administration. 
	Councilor Rickenmann reminded his peers of their commitment to get sworn Officers back onto the streets.
	Mr. Charles P. Austin, Sr., City Manager said that it is not uncommon to have one (1) Major managing three (3) bureaus in a city of this size. He noted that each region is commanded by a Captain.
	Councilor Finlay urged the City Manager to re-evaluate his spreadsheet and how it will impact the budget. He stated that personnel vacancies are used to absorb higher diesel costs.
	Councilor Davis said that it is important for the new Police Chief to understand what the Council expects, noting that we are willing to work with him on this budget. We are making an honest attempt to support their needs and we must have expectations.
	Mr. Charles P. Austin, Sr., City Manager replied that the Police Department is not top heavy, but we need to analyze which works best a Captain or a Lieutenant.  He requested a report that would look at vacant positions so he will know where they are, how much money was budgeted and whether the need still exists. He hopes to have that information within two (2) weeks.
	Councilor Rickenmann also wants to know if the money from the vacancies is being absorbed in the budget.
	Councilor Davis directed the City Manager to immediately develop a strategy to reallocate funding that has not been absorbed.
	Mayor Coble urged staff to keep in mind that it’s the entire city and all funds and to consider other funding sources such as Richland County, Community Development Block Grant Funds, etc.
	Mr. Charles P. Austin, Sr., City Manager asked if the Council wanted him to look at all vacancies and where they are.
	Councilor Finlay requested more detail in an effort to make sure positions are not slotted to secure extra funding. He asked what was spent on fuel in fiscal year 2006/2007, the average prices, the number of gallons and the impact fuel costs will have on the fiscal year 2008/2009 budget.
	Councilor Rickenmann requested a detailed report of all line items and a memo on any changes made to the budget so the Council can understand exactly what they are doing.
	Councilor Sinclair began the discussion on security cameras, noting that there will be a long time before we have a meaningful security system at this pace. We need to find other funding to go with this.
	Mayor Coble insisted that any unallocated funds go towards security cameras. This should be a top priority.
	Mr. Charles P. Austin, Sr., City Manager has considered the possibility of installing cameras on top of parking garages.
	Councilor Devine said that cameras on top of parking garages won’t reach the neighborhoods. She suggested that staff contact the Town of Rock Hill for ballpark figures, because they have Wi-Fi, they remotely read meters and Police Officers can view cameras inside their cars.
	Mr. Steve Gantt, Senior Assistant City Manager stated that Rock Hill is not far enough along with the electronic meter reading to offer us an estimate. They are in the installation process and are concerned about having to put batteries in all water meters in order to read them. He noted that they have experienced a significant amount of failures.
	Mr. Charles P. Austin, Sr., City Manager said that we were in the forefront when we installed the Mobile Data Terminals (MDT) to allow Officers to monitor cameras from the car.
	Councilor Finlay suggested that staff rank the sites as recommended by the consultant. He is supportive of the security cameras but urged his peers to stay within the confines of the budget.
	Councilor Cromartie suggested that the City Manager be directed to meet with the consultants that were hired on a state level to find money. He further suggested that they schedule a breakfast meeting to talk with these consultants.
	Mr. Charles P. Austin, Sr., City Manager explained that the city has a $45,000 commitment to Richland School District One / Together We Can through 2011.
	Councilor Rickenmann expressed concerns about the University of South Carolina charging the schools for graduation ceremonies held at the Koger Center. He said that the city should not do anything for them until they take this fee away, which is paid by the city.
	Mayor Coble explained that they are doing the same study as done in Mobile, Alabama. The cost will be split 3-ways and $85,000 will be set aside for other initiatives with Together We Can.
	Councilor Devine said that we needed to budget something reasonable while realizing that the big picture is enhancing the quality of life.
	Councilor Finlay noted that the recommended level of funding amounts to one third (1/3) of a mil tax increase and that the school district is already hitting our taxpayers.
	Councilor Rickenmann suggested that staff develop a budget for Together We Can.
	Councilor Devine asked about funding for the implementation of the recommendations relating to the Gang Assessment, because that will be a big-ticket item in the $200,000 range.
	Mayor Coble added the Criminal Domestic Violence Taskforce to ensure their needs are met, because this is a top crime problem. He asked how we could require safety and security plans for larger apartment complexes such as Gable Oaks.
	Councilor Devine stated that some expenses may come out of the committee’s recommendation, but no additional funding is needed.
	Councilor Davis said that the Gang Assessment shows there are other entities out there that aren’t bringing any resources to the table. We can’t fund it all ourselves and then we fall short.
	Councilor Rickenmann said that he doesn’t want to do all of this stuff and don’t have an impact. He would rather do a lot on the gang assessment than a little on the cameras.
	Councilor Finlay noted that Richland County School District One has a huge budget. He stated that the City has 30-40 small projects that will cost us. He said that a reserve is needed and questioned the effectiveness of giving dollops of funding all around.
	Mayor Coble stated that this would be a funding source to pay for administrative costs.
	Mr. Charles P. Austin, Sr., City Manager noted that the city is also funding Koban. 
	Councilor Devine suggested that the Commission on Children and Youth or the Columbia Police Department coordinate the Together We Can effort. 
	Councilor Finlay reminded his peers that there is a top line revenue number and if new items are added to the budget then the City Manager should be told where to make cuts.
	Councilor Sinclair stated that homeless and emergency services should be a Public Safety priority. 
	Councilor Davis said that code enforcement should be listed under goal one. He doesn’t see an increase in positions and believes that understaffing hinders the city from addressing the code enforcement needs.
	Mr. Charles P. Austin, Sr., City Manager stated that code enforcement would be their focus as the budget is evaluated.
	Councilor Rickenmann suggested that the Community Safety Officers be cross-trained to help with code enforcement issues.
	Mr. Charles P. Austin, Sr., City Manager noted that cross-training has taken place.
	Mr. Harold Reaves, Director of Homeland Security, explained that he is working with Development Services now, but Community Safety Officers don’t have the authority to do enforcement; therefore, they are trained to identify problems and then report them to Development Services. An Ordinance is needed to give the Community Safety Officers code enforcement authority.
	Councilor Davis suggested that the work hours be adjusted, because not all codes are violated during the standard business hours.  He further suggested that they look at violations that occur over the weekend.
	GOAL 2 – To enhance and protect our natural and built infrastructure.
	Priorities – TIF Settlement, Black & Veatch, General Capital Improvements Program, Park Renovations and the Energy Audit
	Mayor Coble suggested that there be a person in charge of implementing the results of the audit.
	Councilor Sinclair further suggested that the city hire a Climate Protection czar and she reminded the Council that the city has not completed their portion of the Greenway.
	Mr. Steve Gantt, Senior Assistant City Manager stated that funds remaining from other projects can be funneled to the River Alliance for completion of the Greenway.
	Councilor Sinclair reminded her peers about the city’s obligation to the Skate Park. She believes that the consultant has done a great job with fitting the Skate Park into the topography and addressing drainage issues.
	Mr. S. Allison Baker, Assistant City Manager for Public Services explained that the original Skate Park was 20,000 square feet, but the new one will be approximately 16,000 square feet.
	Mr. Steve Gantt, Senior Assistant City Manager stated that the Canalfront bids will go out in a few weeks.
	Councilor Finlay asked for the amount of Hospitality Tax Funds needed by the Police Department. He requested information on how Myrtle Beach handles this.
	Councilor Sinclair stated that funding the Police Department is not a good way to spend Hospitality Tax Funds, because we have a commitment to those that generate the tax. She noted that this is an operational issue.
	Mayor Coble proposed that the city could get more bang for its buck by spending a little more from the Hospitality Tax Fund on the Clean and Safety Teams within tourist areas. This would also decrease the need for more officers.
	Mr. Charles P. Austin, Sr., City Manager explained that the School Resource Officers will be reassigned to patrol functions once school is out.
	Councilor Rickenmann noted that there are a lot of events that require police services, but they don’t pay for those services. He asked about the small groups that rent park facilities.
	Councilor Cromartie announced that the Vista wants a Clean and Safety Team. He noted that they generate a lot of Hospitality Tax Funds within the Vista.
	Mayor Coble suggested that the City Center Partnership, the Five Points Association and the Vista Guild meet to discuss this matter.
	GOAL 3 – To enhance Columbia’s future role as the flagship municipality in South Carolina through the use of best practices for local government operations.
	Priorities – Historic preservation and municipal governance
	Councilor Sinclair asked if the two (2) new Planners had been hired.
	Mr. Steve Gantt, Senior Assistant City Manager stated that they are in the interviewing process for the Planner positions.
	Councilor Cromartie asked for the number of vacancies in the Finance Department, the dollar amount equivalent to such vacancies and the amount paid to the Municipal Association of South Carolina (MASC) to date.
	Councilor Sinclair asked how staff decided that the MASC was the best entity to conduct the departmental assessments. 
	Mr. Charles P. Austin, Sr., City Manager explained that there are other entities available to conduct assessments. The MASC will not conduct the Information Technology assessment and he is unsure if they will do the Human Resources assessment, but the MASC is the better group. He added that they went directly to MASC, because of the city’s membership.
	Mayor Coble noted that several different CPA firms are doing the restructuring of the Finance Department. He asked if the Interim Finance Director would be leading the effort.
	Councilor Rickenmann suggested that the city draft a Request for Proposals for the Human Resources assessment. He stated that a consultant is needed to privatize the IT Department.
	Councilor Sinclair concurred, noting that we make a mistake by not putting out RFP’s.
	Councilor Devine stated that Council gave Mr. Austin a goal and if the Council decides to issue a Request for Proposals for the assessments, they should still give the City Manager credit for doing his part.
	Councilor Finlay stated that the city needed to move past studies and start implementing things. He has been here for 22 months and has never seen an updated income statement. 
	Mr. Charles P. Austin, Sr., City Manager reiterated that the Finance Department is not doing another assessment.
	Mayor Coble explained that the MASC is doing the preparation work for the 2006/2007 audit, staff training, accounting services to include restructuring and best practices. He noted that the hours will decrease once the audit is closed.
	Councilor Cromartie requested the total amount of billable hours for this year and the actual start date of the contract with the Municipal Association.
	Mayor Coble replied that the contract started in February 2008.
	Councilor Devine stated that there is a consensus to draft a Request for Proposals for a Human Resources assessment. She would like to see a Request for Qualifications for an Information Technology assessment along with any concerns. She added that Council should make the final decision on all policy issues.
	Councilor Davis requested that the Information Technology Director report to Council often.
	Councilor Finlay requested the numbers for each income bracket in terms of the Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) since the first proposal is for a 5% COLA for employees making less than $50,000. 
	Mayor Coble stated that the Conventions and Visitors Bureau (CVB) has requested $120,000 and he recommended that they allocate $60,000 at this point and consider the balance once we get our third quarter collections from the state.
	 Mr. Finlay left the meeting at 3:54 p.m.
	Councilor Devine concurred with the Mayor’s recommendation, noting that the CVB was about to lay people off from work.
	Councilor Rickenmann is concerned about departments whose budgets have not increased such as Municipal Court’s personnel services line item, which hasn’t increased in a while.
	Councilor Sinclair has the same concerns about Public Works.
	Councilor Cromartie doesn’t agree with a 3% COLA.
	Councilor Davis would support giving a 5% COLA to employees that earn $35,000 and below.
	Councilor Devine asked for the budgeted amount for the Compensation and Classification Study.
	Mr. Charles P. Austin, Sr., City Manager noted that the Request for Proposals for a Compensation and Classification study has not been completed, but $200,000 has been allocated and built into the line item for the Cost of Living Adjustments.
	Councilor Rickenmann requested that staff compare the MGT study to where we are today and determine where we are lacking. He requested a listing of salaries as reported by WLTX.
	GOAL 4 – To grow the City’s tax base by facilitating opportunities for citizens and future generations to reach their full economic, social and cultural potential
	Priorities – Business License Codes, business incentives and marketing, animal services and solid waste
	Councilor Sinclair said that you would be surprised by the difference it makes in business license fees once you change the codes. 
	Councilor Cromartie stated that this will be a huge part of whether or not people would move to the City of Columbia.
	Councilor Devine asked about replacing the Business License software.
	Mr. Charles P. Austin, Sr., City Manager explained that this is being done in order to comply with the NCIS requirement. 
	Ms. Missy Caughman, Interim Finance Director explained that funding is identified in Business Licenses budget for public relations efforts to get the word out and to focus on educating the public.
	Ms. Dana Turner, Assistant City Manager for Commerce and Development requested $1,000,000; $500,000 for marketing and $500,000 for incentives.
	Councilor Davis suggested that they utilize $600,000 for incentives and $400,000 for marketing.
	Councilor Devine suggested that the Home Loan Programs go under goal four, since we can’t always count on surplus funding.
	Councilor Sinclair said that she thought we had a contract with Richland County for Animal Services.
	Councilor Cromartie directed the City Manager to come back with a recommendation on how the City is going to pay Richland County the maintenance fee per day for inmates booked on city charges. How much should be budgeted? He suggested that they discuss this matter in Executive Session.
	Mr. S. Allison Baker, Assistant City Manager for Public Services stated that Richland County pays the City $14.00 per day for holding animals from Richland County. 
	Councilor Rickenmann asked for the estimated revenue generated from Richland County.
	Councilor Sinclair stated that her business has a contract with the City of Columbia Solid Waste Division and asked if the city had considered increasing that cost. She suggested placing a gizmo on roll carts to determine the weight of trash being disposed and then charging by the weight.
	Councilor Cromartie noted that his business has the same contractual service and wanted to know the current number of businesses utilizing the same service.
	Mr. Charles P. Austin, Sr., City Manager stated that staff would put some numbers together.
	 Councilor Cromartie left the meeting at 4:33 p.m.
	3. Budget Preparation Goals / Climate Protection Action Committee
	 This item was not discussed.
	4. Fiscal Year 2008/2009 Proposed General Fund Budget
	 This item was not discussed.
	5. City Council Priorities
	 This item was not discussed.
	6. Closing Remarks
	Mr. Charles P. Austin, Sr., City Manager presented the schedule for upcoming Budget Work Sessions.  The Council will meet on Wednesday, April 30, 2008 from 9:00 a.m. until 4:00 p.m. to discuss the remaining General Fund, Energy Audit Update, Climate Protection Action Committee initiatives, business license rate comparisons, park renovations, solid waste commercial collections and GASB45.
	Respectfully submitted by:
	Erika D. Salley
	City Clerk
	Word Bookmarks
	OLE_LINK1
	OLE_LINK2


